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United Networks Limited
Directors' report
30 June 2018
The directors present their report, together with the financial statements, on the consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as
the 'consolidated entity') consisting of United Networks Limited (referred to hereafter as the 'company' or 'parent entity') and
the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2018.
Directors
The following persons were directors of United Networks Limited during the whole of the financial year and up to the date
of this report, unless otherwise stated:
Anthony Ghattas
Nicholas Ghattas
Charbel Nader
Principal activities
The United Networks Limited group is an innovative enterprise solutions provider which has developed a platform (Trust
platform) based on global connectivity and customer engagement. The group provides global engagement and value-add
Insuretech solutions to the insurance and travel industry to allow them to increase end-customer engagement.
Dividends
There were no dividends paid, recommended or declared during the current or previous financial year.
Review of operations
Financial Highlights
Revenue for the group for the period is down 57.2% to $2,668,385 as result of the following items:●
●
●

Cancellation of the Covermore contract in the 2018 financial year, and decrease in sales volume in the Global SIM
business. Revenue from the Covermore contract for the year ended 30 June 2018 was $893,325 (2017: $2,699,845).
The Global SIM business continues to generate revenues.
Deferral of the 2018 research and development grant to the 2019 financial year. The 2018 research and development
grant will be recognised when it is paid in the 2019 financial year. A total of $518,000 in research and development
grants were received in FY18 and were accrued in the FY17 year-end accounts.
Delays in the launch of new partners and release of the new Insuretech product Flight Delay insurance in August
2018.

The group reported a Statutory loss after tax for the year of $19,268,609 following a goodwill impairment of $16,016,577 as
a result of the cancellation of the Covermore contract during the year, decreases in Global SIM sales and a de-recognition
of the net deferred tax asset of $418,942. The group generated a net operating loss of $2,833,090 for the year (30 June
2017: $1,037,177).
The group’s cash and cash equivalents at year end are $1,355,892 (30 June 2017 $4,214,949). The group significantly cut
monthly cash operating costs during the year.
The group has now adjusted its cost base and is focused on developing revenue with a focus on Insuretech markets
globally.
Operational Highlights
During the year ended 30 June 2018, the group successfully expanded its product offerings from a focus on
telecommunications to the commercialisation of value add Insuretech solutions. The group is now well positioned to
capitalise on its successful entrance into this growth sector.
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Over the 12 months to June 2018, the group:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Went live in January 2018 with its global SOS 24/7 emergency alerts platform with one of the world’s largest insurers
Chubb in the APAC region.
Signed with a second global insurance company AIG and went live in Asia Pacific region in August 2018.
Secured and launched new SIM and Wi-Fi clients in FY18 including the Group’s first “Internet of Things” partner.
Became an authorised representative of Chubb Insurance Australia, to allow for the sale of insurance products.
Released the Insuretech Flight Delay Insurance product in August 2018 operated from the Group’s unique “Trust”
platform.
Increased Wi-Fi hotspots in conjunction with connectivity partners from 63+ million hotspots to 65+ million hotspots.
Reductions of $1.5 million annualised overheads costs have been implemented throughout the year to align to current
revenues.

Major Achievements
1) SOS Alerts - Engagement rates increased by over 300%. Actionable intelligence and analysis delivered to the right
people at the right time and place powered by the “Trust” platform
The release of SOS alerts solutions has revolutionised how Insurance companies manage, share and disseminate
information to reduce risk to their end customers. The SOS alerts is a proactive risk management service that provides
safety and security updates from trusted sources directly to customers. It provides targeted real time “alerts” using GPS
technology that enhances the ability of global insurers assistant teams to monitor and analyze worldwide incidents and
events. As a consequence it increases their ability to respond to risks that threaten effected customers. The SOS Alerts is
powered by the “Trust” platform and is currently being used by two of the world’s largest insurance companies to engage
with clients, reduce risk and protect their customers when travelling.
The SOS alerts powered by the “Trust” platform has a number of powerful benefits which include:●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Tracks globally all hazards and incidents 24/7, 365 days a year
Delivers relevant incident/event intelligence to “in-vicinity” customers
Helps reduce customer risk for Global Insurers
Provides real time GPS enabled incident alerts
Provides risk visibility and reduces contact-center labour costs
Improves situational awareness of threats/events with relevant and timely information
Allows for tailored and geo-fenced alerting
Provides customers with connectivity and more importantly, piece of mind

The severity ranges from Category 1 to Category 4 risk events. Category 4 is the highest level of risk for travelers. SOS
Alerts for the year included:●
●
●

24,650 Global event alerts sent
8,139 Global emergency warning events (category 3 events)
348 Global emergency category 4 events

The powerful suite of tools and solutions powered by the “Trust” platform has enabled the group to increase the partner
engagement rate from inception from 7% to 12% to over 30% to 40%. This has enabled partners to dramatically improve
engagement by connecting and protecting their customers.
2) Flight Delay Insurance Launched - On-demand and claims free Insuretech solutions underpins the new wave of
revenues for the Group
Flight Delay Insurance provides fixed compensation for travellers when their flight is cancelled, diverted or delayed.
Typically the standard travel insurance plan will only payout when the flight delay is more than six hours. With Flight Delay
insurance, a delay of as short as 30 minutes will trigger an automatic fixed payout. The solution is also powered by the
“Trust” platform. The group has developed this innovative solution in conjunction with global reinsurance and insurance
companies.
This is a significant milestone in for the group as it is first of many On-Demand insurance solutions that is set to transform
the business revenues from connectivity to transactional income.
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3) Validation of the Trust platform engagement solutions with the signing of a second global insurance company
Subsequent to year end the group launched its “Trust” platform solutions offering to AIG customers. With increasing
engagement rates it has provided some of the world's largest insurers with a means to connect, protect and engage
directly with their customers during their trip and when it is most needed.
Further validation of the Trust platform engagement solutions has been supported with a significant increase in the sales
pipeline and future opportunities post the launch of these solutions. Management is working with several large partners on
trials and finalisation of contracts.
Significant events and progress after the reporting period
The group announced in August 2018 two significant new events:●
●

Release of the Insuretech product Flight Delay Insurance in conjunction with Chubb and SwissRe
Launch of AIG solutions and promotions using the United Networks Wi-Fi and SOS alerts solutions.

Since the releases in August 2018 the group has experienced a significant increase in enquiries and resulting in a strong
global sales pipeline. Management is working with several global partners on trials and finalisation of contracts.
Significant changes in the state of affairs
The company undertook an assessment of the recoverable amount of goodwill at 30 June 2018, and as a result of this
assessment, the Directors have determined to fully impair the goodwill amount of $16,016,577. The reasons for impairment
of goodwill are principally due to the cancellation of the Covermore contract in the 2018 financial year and decrease in
sales volume in the Global SIM business.
There were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity during the financial year.
Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year
No matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2018 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the
consolidated entity's operations, the results of those operations, or the consolidated entity's state of affairs in future
financial years.
Likely developments and expected results of operations
Information on likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results of operations have
not been included in this report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the
consolidated entity.
Going concern
For the year ended 30 June 2018 the consolidated entity incurred a loss after income tax of $19,268,609 (2017:
$1,037,177) and net cash outflows from operating activities of $1,277,975 (2017: $305,522). The net operating loss after
tax for the financial year ended 30 June 2018, excluding the impairment of goodwill of $16,016,577 and the write back of
the net deferred tax asset of $418,942, was $2,833,090. The recurring operating historical losses and net cash outflows
from operating activities give rise to uncertainty that may cast doubt about the ability of the consolidated entity to continue
as a going concern.
The company has recently announced a new key partner contract and reduced overheads to align with the current
business revenue and the new contract announced. Overhead reductions in excess of $1.2 million were implemented in
the last two quarters of the 2018 financial year, with further reductions implemented to wages and rent costs in July 2018
and August 2018 resulting in a total overhead reduction of over $1.5 million.
The increase in the operating loss before impairment of goodwill and write back of the net deferred tax asset, was
significantly due to the cancellation of the Covermore contract in the 2018 financial year, and decrease in sales volume in
the Global SIM business. Despite the impairment, the global sim product continues to generate revenues and the business
has launched new global partners who have launched the Wi-Fi and Insuretech solutions.
Refer to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements for the Directors' mitigation of going concern uncertainty.
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Environmental regulation
The consolidated entity is not subject to any significant environmental regulation under Australian Commonwealth or State
law.
Information on directors
Name:
Title:
Qualifications:
Experience and expertise:

Anthony Ghattas
Non-executive Chairman
None
Anthony Ghattas is the former CEO of ASX listed, digital and mobile content
development company HWW Limited. Anthony is the Founder and Managing Director
of United Lifestyle Group, he has extensive experiences in direct to customer
marketing in Australia and overseas which retails consumer direct wines under
multiple brands in Australia and New Zealand. Over the last 14 years, Anthony has
seen to the growth of United Lifestyle Group across multiple continents.
Other current directorships:
None
Former directorships (last 3 years): None
Special responsibilities:
Chairman
Interests in shares:
38,238,124
Interests in options:
5,250,000
Name:
Title:
Qualifications:
Experience and expertise:

Nicholas Ghattas
Director and Chief Executive Officer
BCom (University of New South Wales)
Nicholas Ghattas has more than 20 years of experience in telecommunications. He
has experience in sourcing, developing, building and managing mobile solutions
businesses, Nicholas has delivered telecommunications solutions to Enterprise
clients. His experience includes roles such as Corporate Financial Accountant at
Coopers & Lybrand (PwC) and Director of a mobile retail outlet.

Over the last 6 years, Nicholas has built United Networks Limited into a successful
domestic telecommunications business and has extended the business into the
international mobile roaming market through a global roaming solution, available in
Australia, Canada, Malaysia and New Zealand.
Other current directorships:
None
Former directorships (last 3 years): None
Special responsibilities:
Chief Executive Officer
Interests in shares:
38,208,124
Interests in options:
5,250,000
Name:
Title:
Qualifications:
Experience and expertise:

Charbel Nader
Non-executive Director
BCom (University of Melbourne), Master of Applied Finance (University of Melbourne)
Charbel Nader is an investment banker with extensive experience in corporate
finance and strategic advisory roles, including experience in mergers and
acquisitions. Charbel was the Founding Chairman of Metro Media Publishing Pty Ltd.
Charbel is a Director of Madman Entertainment Pty Ltd and Chairman of New
Talisman Gold Mines Limited.
Other current directorships:
Chairman - New Talisman Gold Mines Limited (since 24 August 2016)
Former directorships (last 3 years): None
Special responsibilities:
None
Interests in shares:
90,000
Interests in options:
3,500,000
'Other current directorships' quoted above are current directorships for listed entities only and excludes directorships of all
other types of entities, unless otherwise stated.
'Former directorships (last 3 years)' quoted above are directorships held in the last 3 years for listed entities only and
excludes directorships of all other types of entities, unless otherwise stated.
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Company secretary
Michael Potts is the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) and Company Secretary of United Networks Limited. Michael has more
than 30 years of experience in major firms including Deloitte, Nexia Australia, MasterPack Systems and JUA Underwriting
Agency. Michael’s expertise has seen him in roles and responsibilities ranging from consultancy to CFO. Michael holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from Macquarie University and is a member of the Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand.
Meetings of directors
The number of meetings of the company's Board of Directors ('the Board') held during the year ended 30 June 2018, and
the number of meetings attended by each director were:
Full Board
Attended
Held
Anthony Ghattas
Nicholas Ghattas
Charbel Nader

10
10
10

10
10
10

Held: represents the number of meetings held during the time the director held office.
An Audit Committee has been formed but did not meet during the year to 30 June 2018. There are no other separate
Board committees.
Remuneration report (audited)
The remuneration report details the key management personnel remuneration arrangements for the consolidated entity, in
accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and its Regulations.
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including all directors.
The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings:
●
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
●
Details of remuneration
●
Service agreements
●
Share-based compensation
●
Additional information
●
Additional disclosures relating to key management personnel
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
The objective of the consolidated entity's executive reward framework is to ensure reward for performance is competitive
and appropriate for the results delivered. The framework aligns executive reward with the achievement of strategic
objectives and the creation of value for shareholders, and it is considered to conform to the market best practice for the
delivery of reward. The Board of Directors ('the Board') ensures that executive reward satisfies the following key criteria for
good reward governance practices:
●
competitiveness and reasonableness
●
acceptability to shareholders
●
performance linkage / alignment of executive compensation
●
transparency
The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing remuneration arrangements for its directors and executives. The
performance of the consolidated entity depends on the quality of its directors and executives. The remuneration philosophy
is to attract, motivate and retain high performance and high quality personnel.
The Board has structured an executive remuneration framework that is market competitive and complementary to the
reward strategy of the consolidated entity.
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The reward framework is designed to align executive reward to shareholders' interests. The Board have considered that it
should seek to enhance shareholders' interests by:
●
having economic profit as a core component of plan design
●
focusing on sustained growth in shareholder wealth, consisting of dividends and growth in share price, and delivering
constant or increasing return on assets as well as focusing the executive on key non-financial drivers of value
●
attracting and retaining high calibre executives
Additionally, the reward framework should seek to enhance executives' interests by:
●
rewarding capability and experience
●
reflecting competitive reward for contribution to growth in shareholder wealth
●
providing a clear structure for earning rewards
In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive director and executive director
remuneration is separate.
Non-executive directors remuneration
Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands and responsibilities of their role. Non-executive
directors' fees and payments are reviewed annually. The Board may, from time to time, receive advice from independent
remuneration consultants to ensure non-executive directors' fees and payments are appropriate and in line with the market.
The chairman's fees are determined independently to the fees of other non-executive directors based on comparative roles
in the external market. The chairman is not present at any discussions relating to the determination of his own
remuneration. Non-executive directors are entitled to receive share options under the Employee Share Option Plan.
ASX listing rules require the aggregate non-executive directors' remuneration be determined periodically by a general
meeting. The approval of a maximum annual aggregate remuneration for non-executive directors will be tabled at the
company's next Annual General Meeting to be held on 22 November 2018.
Executive remuneration
The consolidated entity aims to reward executives based on their position and responsibility, with a level and mix of
remuneration which has both fixed and variable components.
The executive remuneration and reward framework has four components:
●
base pay and non-monetary benefits
●
short-term performance incentives
●
share-based payments
●
other remuneration such as superannuation and long service leave
The combination of these comprises the executive's total remuneration.
Fixed remuneration, consisting of base salary, superannuation and non-monetary benefits, are reviewed annually by the
Board based on individual and business unit performance, the overall performance of the consolidated entity and
comparable market remunerations.
Executives may receive their fixed remuneration in the form of cash or other fringe benefits (for example motor vehicle
benefits) where it does not create any additional costs to the consolidated entity and provides additional value to the
executive.
The long-term incentives include share-based payments. Options to acquire shares may be awarded to executives.
Consolidated entity performance and link to remuneration
Remuneration for certain individuals is directly linked to the performance of the consolidated entity. A portion of cash bonus
and incentive payments are dependent on defined earnings per share targets being met. The remaining portion of the cash
bonus and incentive payments are at the discretion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Refer to the section
'Additional information' below for details of the earnings and total shareholders return for the last five years.
Use of remuneration consultants
The company did not engage remuneration consultants during the financial year ended 30 June 2018.
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Voting and comments made at the company's 23 November 2017 Annual General Meeting ('AGM')
At the 23 November 2017 AGM, 81% of the votes received supported the adoption of the remuneration report for the year
ended 30 June 2017. The company did not receive any specific feedback at the AGM regarding its remuneration practices.
Details of remuneration
Amounts of remuneration
Details of the remuneration of key management personnel of the consolidated entity are set out in the following tables.
The key management personnel of the consolidated entity consisted of the following directors of United Networks Limited:
●
Anthony Ghattas - Non-executive Chairman
●
Nicholas Ghattas - Director and Chief Executive Officer
●
Charbel Nader - Non-executive Director
And the following persons:
●
Neil Brener - Chief Operations Officer (ceased employment on 23 March 2018)
●
Michael Potts - Chief Finance Officer
Short-term benefits

2018

Cash salary
and fees
$

Non-Executive Directors:
Anthony Ghattas
Charbel Nader
Executive Directors:
Nicholas Ghattas
Other Key Management
Personnel:
Neil Brener*
Michael Potts
*

Post-employment benefits

Nonmonetary
$

Superannuation
$

Long-term
benefits

Termination
benefits
$

Long service
leave
$

Total
$

85,731
48,000

-

7,767
4,560

-

-

93,498
52,560

280,231

7,942

11,955

-

14,509

314,637

164,363
176,800
755,125

(5,889)
4,939
6,992

14,318
16,796
55,396

11,086
11,086

(4)
69
14,574

183,874
198,604
843,173

Neil Brener ceased employment on 23 March 2018

Short-term benefits

2017
Non-Executive Directors:
Anthony Ghattas
Charbel Nader
Executive Directors:
Nicholas Ghattas
Other Key Management Personnel:
Neil Brener
Michael Potts

Cash salary
and fees
$

Nonmonetary
$

Postemployment
benefits

Long-term
benefits

Superannuation
$

Long service
leave
$

Total
$

96,000
48,000

-

9,120
4,560

-

105,120
52,560

295,000

48,300

19,418

(2,305)

360,413

74,288
176,800
690,088

5,889
13,737
67,926

7,057
16,796
56,951

4
(223)
(2,524)

87,238
207,110
812,441
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The proportion of remuneration linked to performance and the fixed proportion are as follows:
Fixed
remuneration
2018

Name

2017

At risk - STI
2018

At risk - LTI
2018

Non-Executive Directors:
Anthony Ghattas
Charbel Nader

100%
100%

100%
100%

-

-

Executive Directors:
Nicholas Ghattas

100%

100%

-

-

Other Key Management Personnel:
Neil Brener
Michael Potts

100%
100%

100%
100%

-

-

Service agreements
Remuneration and other terms of employment for key management personnel are formalised in service agreements.
Details of these agreements are as follows:
Name:
Title:
Agreement commenced:
Term of agreement:
Details:

Nicholas Ghattas
Chief Executive Officer
1 November 2015
On-going
Base salary of $295,000 per annum, to be reviewed annually by the Board. The
contract may be terminated by the company giving a 12 months notice and the CEO
giving the greater of 4 weeks and the notice required under the Fair Work Act. There
is no provision in the contract for a payout on termination other than accrued pay,
leave entitlements or other statutory payments.

Name:
Title:
Agreement commenced:
Term of agreement:
Details:

Neil Brener
Chief Operations Officer
15 February 2017
Ceased employment on 23 March 2018
Base salary of $225,000 per annum. The contract could be terminated by the
company with 6 weeks' notice for less than 12 months service and 3 months' notice
for more than 12 months' service. The COO could terminate the contract with 6
weeks' notice for less than 12 months service and 3 months' notice for more than 12
months' service or the relevant notice required under the Fair Work Act. There was no
provision in the contract for a payout on termination other than accrued pay, leave
entitlements or other statutory payments.

Name:
Title:
Agreement commenced:
Term of agreement:
Details:

Michael Potts
Chief Finance Officer
31 August 2015
On-going
Base salary of $176,800 per annum. The contract may be terminated by either party
giving to the other party notice in accordance with an applicable Industrial Instrument
of the Fair Work Act. There is no provision in the contract for a payout on termination
other than accrued pay, leave entitlements or other statutory payments.

Key management personnel have no entitlement to termination payments in the event of removal for misconduct.
Share-based compensation
Issue of shares
There were no shares issued to directors and other key management personnel as part of compensation during the year
ended 30 June 2018 (2017: nil).
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Options
The terms and conditions of each grant of options over ordinary shares affecting remuneration of directors and other key
management personnel in this financial year or future reporting years are as follows:

Name
Anthony Ghattas
Nicholas Ghattas
Charbel Nader

Number of
options
granted

Grant date

5,250,000 01/07/2016
5,250,000 01/07/2016
3,500,000 01/07/2016

Vesting date and
exercisable date

Expiry date

01/07/2018
01/07/2018
01/07/2018

11/11/2021
11/11/2021
11/11/2021

Fair value
per option
Exercise price at grant date
$0.300
$0.300
$0.300

$0.000
$0.000
$0.000

Options granted carry no dividend or voting rights.
The options granted to Directors were in terms of the Employee Share Option Plan and were granted over unissued fully
paid ordinary shares in the company. Options vest based on the provision of service over the vesting period whereby the
Director becomes beneficially entitled to the option on vesting date. Options are exercisable by the holder as from the
vesting date. There has not been any alteration to the terms or conditions of the grant since the grant date. There are no
amounts paid or payable by the recipient in relation to the granting of such options other than on their potential exercise.
There were no options that were exercised, forfeited or lapsed during the year.
Additional information
The earnings of the consolidated entity for the four years to 30 June 2018 are summarised below:
2018
$
Sales revenue
EBITDA
EBIT
Profit/(loss) after income tax

2017
$

2,617,734
(17,865,504)
(18,840,274)
(19,268,609)

2016
$

5,142,500
(309,067)
(1,050,522)
(1,037,177)

2015
$

6,926,658
1,019,643
347,477
337,001

5,892,531
83,954
(188,224)
(260,689)

Additional disclosures relating to key management personnel
Shareholding
The number of shares in the company held during the financial year by each director and other members of key
management personnel of the consolidated entity, including their personally related parties, is set out below:
Balance at
the start of
the year
Ordinary shares
Anthony Ghattas
Nicholas Ghattas
Charbel Nader
Michael Potts

Received
as part of
remuneration

38,238,124
38,208,124
90,000
25,000
76,561,248
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Balance at
the end of
the year

Disposals/
other

Additions
-

-

38,238,124
38,208,124
90,000
25,000
76,561,248

United Networks Limited
Directors' report
30 June 2018
Option holding
The number of options over ordinary shares in the company held during the financial year by each director and other
members of key management personnel of the consolidated entity, including their personally related parties, is set out
below:
Balance at
the start of
the year
Options over ordinary shares
Anthony Ghattas
Nicholas Ghattas
Charbel Nader

Granted

5,250,000
5,250,000
3,500,000
14,000,000

Expired/
forfeited/
other

Exercised
-

Vested and
exercisable

Options over ordinary shares
Anthony Ghattas
Nicholas Ghattas
Charbel Nader

Balance at
the end of
the year
-

Unvested and
unexercisable
-

5,250,000
5,250,000
3,500,000
14,000,000

5,250,000
5,250,000
3,500,000
14,000,000
Balance at
the end of
the year
5,250,000
5,250,000
3,500,000
14,000,000

Loans to key management personnel and their related parties
There were no loans owing by key management personnel of the group, including their close family members and entities
related to them, at 30 June 2018. Included in trade and other receivables at 30 June 2017 was a short-term loan of $1,905
to a Director related entity. The loan had no fixed repayment terms, was unsecured and interest-free. The loan was repaid
during the 2018 financial year and the highest loan balance during the year was $1,900 (2017: $1,900). No write-downs or
allowances for doubtful receivables have been recognised in relation to this loan.
Other transactions with key management personnel and their related parties
The consolidated entity sold goods and services (IT support, telephone and internet, IT and network equipment and
infrastructure services), during the year in the sum of $135,731 (2017: $445,616) to 7 entities in which Mr Anthony Ghattas
is a director and a controlling shareholder. The contracts were based on normal commercial terms and conditions.
The consolidated entity purchased goods and services (rent, parking, shared office services and amenities and HR
services) during the year in the sum of $372,617 (2017: $445,130) from 5 entities in which Mr Anthony Ghattas is a director
and a controlling shareholder. The contracts were based on normal commercial terms and conditions.
Included in trade and other receivables at 30 June 2018 is a security deposit on the rental premises of $39,331 (2017:
$39,331) held by a Director related entity. The security deposit will be refunded on termination of the lease.
Aggregate amounts of each of the above types of other transactions with key management personnel and their related
entities:
Amounts recognised as revenue:
Sale of goods: $84,242 (2017: $259,624)
Services: $51,489 (2017: $185,992)
Amounts recognised as expenses
Administration: $372,617 (2017: $445,130)
Interest paid: $23,021 (2017: nil)
Amounts recognised as trade and other receivables
Trade receivables: $58,622 (2017: 94,167)
Security deposit: $39,331 (2017: $39,331)
Amounts recognised as trade and other payables
Trade payables: $10,279 (2017: 6,622)
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There were no other transactions with key management personnel of the group, including their close family members and
entities related to them, during the financial year ended 30 June 2018.
This concludes the remuneration report, which has been audited.
Shares under option
Unissued ordinary shares of United Networks Limited under option at the date of this report are as follows:
Exercise
price

Grant date

Expiry date

1 July 2016*
2 November 2016**
11 November 2016***

1 November 2021
2 November 2021
11 November 2021

$0.300
$0.300
$0.300

Number
under option
14,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
16,000,000

*
**
***

Options granted to the Directors
Options granted to the Lead Manager in relation to the company's initial public offer of shares
Options granted to the Corporate Adviser in consideration for consultancy services in relation to the company's initial
public offer of shares

No person entitled to exercise the options had or has any right by virtue of the option to participate in any share issue of
the company or of any other body corporate.
No options were granted to the directors or any of the five highest remunerated officers of the company since the end of
the financial year.
Shares issued on the exercise of options
There were no ordinary shares of United Networks Limited issued on the exercise of options during the year ended 30
June 2018 and up to the date of this report.
Use of cash and assets readily convertible to cash since admission to ASX official list
In accordance with Listing Rule 4.10.19 the company confirms that the consolidated entity has been utilising the cash and
assets in a form readily convertible to cash, that it held at the time of its admission to the Official List of ASX in the current
reporting period in a way that is consistent with its business objectives.
Indemnity and insurance of officers
The company has indemnified the directors and executives of the company for costs incurred, in their capacity as a director
or executive, for which they may be held personally liable, except where there is a lack of good faith.
During the financial year, the company paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the directors and executives of the
company against a liability to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits
disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium.
Indemnity and insurance of auditor
The company has not, during or since the end of the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify the auditor of the
company or any related entity against a liability incurred by the auditor.
During the financial year, the company has not paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the auditor of the company
or any related entity.
Proceedings on behalf of the company
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on
behalf of the company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking
responsibility on behalf of the company for all or part of those proceedings.
Non-audit services
Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor for non-audit services provided during the financial year by the auditor
are outlined in note 25 to the financial statements.
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United Networks Limited
Directors' report
30 June 2018
The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the financial year, by the auditor (or by another
person or firm on the auditor's behalf), is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by
the Corporations Act 2001.
The directors are of the opinion that the services as disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements do not compromise the
external auditor's independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:
●
all non-audit services have been reviewed and approved to ensure that they do not impact the integrity and objectivity
of the auditor; and
●
none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in APES 110 Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, including
reviewing or auditing the auditor's own work, acting in a management or decision-making capacity for the company,
acting as advocate for the company or jointly sharing economic risks and rewards.
Auditor's independence declaration
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out
immediately after this directors' report.
Auditor
Rothsay Chartered Accountants continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.
This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors, pursuant to section 298(2)(a) of the Corporations Act
2001.
On behalf of the directors

___________________________
Nicholas Ghattas
Chief Executive Officer and Director
26 September 2018
Sydney
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

As lead auditor of United Networks Limited for the year ended 30 June 2018, I declare that, to the best of
my knowledge and belief, there have been:


no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and



no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of United Networks Limited and the entities it controlled during the year.

Rothsay Chartered Accountants

Frank Vrachas
Partner
Sydney, 26 September 2018
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General information
The financial statements cover United Networks Limited as a consolidated entity consisting of United Networks Limited and
the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year. The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars,
which is United Networks Limited's functional and presentation currency.
United Networks Limited is a listed public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered
office and principal place of business is:
Suite 201, Level 2
100 William Street
Woolloomooloo
NSW 2011
A description of the nature of the consolidated entity's operations and its principal activities are included in the directors'
report, which is not part of the financial statements.
The financial statements were authorised for issue, in accordance with a resolution of directors, on 26 September 2018.
The directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial statements.
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United Networks Limited
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note

2018
$

2017
$

Revenue

4

2,668,385

6,236,046

Other income

5

-

12,733

Expenses
Cost of sales
Marketing
Occupancy
Administration
Impairment of goodwill
Other expenses
Finance costs

13
6

Loss before income tax (expense)/benefit

(1,775,523)
(50,599)
(11,926)
(2,385,159)
(16,016,577)
(1,226,499)
(51,769)

(3,537,527)
(71,451)
(55,764)
(2,199,018)
(1,376,068)
(106,050)

(18,849,667)

(1,097,099)

Income tax (expense)/benefit

7

(418,942)

Loss after income tax (expense)/benefit for the year attributable to the owners
of United Networks Limited

21

(19,268,609)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

59,922
(1,037,177)

-

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the owners of United
Networks Limited

(19,268,609)
Cents

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

32
32

(1,037,177)
Cents

(15.31)
(15.31)

The above statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes
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(0.97)
(0.97)

United Networks Limited
Statement of financial position
As at 30 June 2018
Note

2018
$

2017
$

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Other
Total current assets

8
9
10
11

1,355,892
372,898
90,900
103,700
1,923,390

4,214,949
1,896,706
131,975
59,322
6,302,952

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangibles
Deferred tax
Total non-current assets

12
13
14

361,386
1,981,955
2,343,341

506,047
17,876,073
762,620
19,144,740

4,266,731

25,447,692

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total current liabilities

15
16
17

616,484
505,704
147,815
1,270,003

1,573,503
992,223
129,051
2,694,777

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred tax
Total non-current liabilities

18
19

87,188
87,188

231,088
343,678
574,766

Total liabilities

1,357,191

3,269,543

Net assets

2,909,540

22,178,149

Equity
Issued capital
Accumulated losses

20
21

Total equity

24,278,800
(21,369,260)
2,909,540

24,278,800
(2,100,651)
22,178,149

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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United Networks Limited
Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Issued
capital
$
Balance at 1 July 2016

Accumulated
losses
Total equity
$
$

17,777,025

(1,063,474)

16,713,551

Loss after income tax benefit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

-

(1,037,177)
-

(1,037,177)
-

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

(1,037,177)

(1,037,177)

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Contributions of equity, net of transaction costs (note 20)

6,501,775

Balance at 30 June 2017

24,278,800
Issued
capital
$

Balance at 1 July 2017

(2,100,651)

6,501,775
22,178,149

Accumulated
losses
Total equity
$
$

24,278,800

(2,100,651)

22,178,149

Loss after income tax expense for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

-

(19,268,609)
-

(19,268,609)
-

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

(19,268,609)

(19,268,609)

24,278,800

(21,369,260)

2,909,540

Balance at 30 June 2018

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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United Networks Limited
Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note

2018
$

2017
$

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers (inclusive of GST)
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST)

3,506,670
(5,275,530)

6,481,632
(6,710,418)

R&D tax incentive
Interest received
Interest and other finance costs paid

(1,768,860)
519,033
42,376
(70,524)

(228,786)
59,473
(136,209)

(1,277,975)

(305,522)

(10,385)
(892,499)
1,905
-

(5,466)
(961,393)
(40,084)
21,029
13,519

(900,979)

(972,395)

(680,103)

7,133,500
145,137
(1,079,778)
(1,215,290)

(680,103)

4,983,569

(2,859,057)
4,214,949

3,705,652
509,297

1,355,892

4,214,949

Net cash used in operating activities

30

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Payments for intangibles
Loans repaid by/(advanced to) other entities
Proceeds from disposal of investments
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

13

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares
Proceeds from borrowings
Share issue transaction costs and other transaction costs attributable to the listing
Repayment of borrowings

20
31

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

8

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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United Networks Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2018
Note 1. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out either in the respective
notes or below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted
The consolidated entity has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period. None of the new
standards and amendments to standards affected any of the amounts recognised in the current period or any prior period.
During the financial year ended 30 June 2016, the consolidated entity elected to early adopted AASB 15 'Revenue from
contracts with customers' and AASB 16 'Leases'. AASB 15 and AASB 16 are applicable to annual financial reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively. Any other new or amended Accounting
Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted.
Going concern
For the year ended 30 June 2018 the consolidated entity incurred a loss after income tax of $19,268,609 (2017:
$1,037,177) and net cash outflows from operating activities of $1,277,975 (2017: $305,522). The net operating loss for the
financial year ended 30 June 2018, excluding the impairment of goodwill ($16,016,577) and the write back of the net
deferred tax asset ($418,942), was $2,833,090. The recurring historical operating losses and net cash outflows from
operating activities give rise to uncertainty that may cast doubt about the ability of the consolidated entity to continue as a
going concern.
The company has recently announced a new key partner contract and reduced overheads to align with the current
business revenue and new contract announced. Overhead reductions in excess of $1.2 million were implemented in the
last two quarters of the 2018 financial year with further reductions implemented to wages and rent costs in July 2018 and
August 2018 resulting in a total overhead reduction of over $1.5 million.
The increase in the operating loss before impairment of goodwill and write back of the net deferred tax asset, was
significantly due to the cancellation of the Covermore contract in the 2018 financial year, and decrease in sales volume in
the Global SIM business. Despite the impairment, the Global Sim product continues to generate revenues and the
business has launched new global partners who have launched the Wi-Fi and Insuretech solutions.
The ability of the consolidated entity to maintain continuity of normal business activities and to pay its debts as and when
they fall due is dependent on the consolidated entity having sufficient working capital to fund its activities.
The Directors have concluded that any uncertainty regarding going concern is mitigated by the following:
●
The company has prepared a consolidated income and expenditure budget and cash flow budget for the 2019
financial year, based on reasonable assumptions, and considered extended forecasts for a period of not less than 12
months from the date of signature of the audit report on this financial report to the expected date of signature of the
audit report on the financial report for the year ending 30 June 2019. The Directors are budgeting for a modest surplus
for the 30 June 2019 financial year.
●
The consolidated entity has restructured a number of its costs to ensure reductions are achieved where possible
without compromising service delivery.
●
The new partner contract announced in August 2018, and the release of the new Insuretech products that will
contribute to sales in the 2019 financial year.
Based on the above, the Directors are of the opinion that at the date of signature of the financial report there are
reasonable and supportable grounds to believe that the consolidated entity will be able to achieve a combination of the
above in order to meet its liabilities from its assets in the ordinary course of business, for a period of not less than 12
months from the date of signature of the audit report on this financial report to the date of signature of the audit report on
the financial report for the year ending 30 June 2019, and has accordingly prepared the financial report on a going concern
basis.
Should the consolidated entity be unable to continue as a going concern it may be required to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities other than in the normal course of business at amounts different to those stated in the financial
statements. The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of
asset carrying amounts or the amount of liabilities that might result should the consolidated entity be unable to continue as
a going concern and meet its debts as and when they fall due.
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United Networks Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2018
Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') and the Corporations Act 2001, as
appropriate for for-profit oriented entities. These financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ('IASB').
Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for, where applicable, financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Critical accounting estimates
The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the consolidated entity's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 2.
Parent entity information
In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, these financial statements present the results of the consolidated entity
only. Supplementary information about the parent entity is disclosed in note 27.
Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of United Networks Limited
('company' or 'parent entity') as at 30 June 2018 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. United
Networks Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to in these financial statements as the 'consolidated entity'.
Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the consolidated entity has control. The consolidated entity controls an entity
when the consolidated entity is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the consolidated entity. They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the consolidated entity are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the consolidated entity.
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. A change in ownership interest,
without the loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, where the difference between the consideration
transferred and the book value of the share of the non-controlling interest acquired is recognised directly in equity
attributable to the parent.
Where the consolidated entity loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets including goodwill, liabilities and
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary together with any cumulative translation differences recognised in equity. The
consolidated entity recognises the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any investment retained
together with any gain or loss in profit or loss.
Income tax
The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on that period's taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by the changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences, unused tax losses and the adjustment recognised for prior periods, where applicable.
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United Networks Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2018
Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to be applied when
the assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted,
except for:
●
When the deferred income tax asset or liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
nor taxable profits; or
●
When the taxable temporary difference is associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, and
the timing of the reversal can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
The carrying amount of recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. Deferred
tax assets recognised are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that future taxable profits will be available for
the carrying amount to be recovered. Previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there are future taxable profits available to recover the asset.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities; and they relate to the same taxable
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend to settle simultaneously.
United Networks Limited (the 'head entity') and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries have formed an income tax
consolidated group under the tax consolidation regime. The head entity and each subsidiary in the tax consolidated group
continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. The tax consolidated group has applied the 'separate
taxpayer within group' approach in determining the appropriate amount of taxes to allocate to members of the tax
consolidated group.
In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, the head entity also recognises the current tax liabilities (or assets)
and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from each subsidiary in the tax
consolidated group.
Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts
receivable from or payable to other entities in the tax consolidated group. The tax funding arrangement ensures that the
intercompany charge equals the current tax liability or benefit of each tax consolidated group member, resulting in neither a
contribution by the head entity to the subsidiaries nor a distribution by the subsidiaries to the head entity.
Current and non-current classification
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when: it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the
consolidated entity's normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be realised
within 12 months after the reporting period; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged
or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when: it is either expected to be settled in the consolidated entity's normal operating cycle;
it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or there is no
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other liabilities
are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current.
Investments and other financial assets
Investments and other financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs are included as part of the
initial measurement, except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. They are subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value depending on their classification. Classification is determined based on the purpose of
the acquisition and subsequent reclassification to other categories is restricted.
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United Networks Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2018
Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the consolidated entity has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.
Impairment of financial assets
The consolidated entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. Objective evidence includes significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or obligor; a breach of contract such as default or delinquency in payments; the lender granting to a borrower
concessions due to economic or legal reasons that the lender would not otherwise do; it becomes probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; the disappearance of an active market for the financial
asset; or observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows.
The amount of the impairment allowance for loans and receivables carried at amortised cost is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. If there is a reversal of impairment, the reversal cannot exceed the amortised cost that would have been recognised
had the impairment not been made and is reversed to profit or loss.
Leases
A lease is a contract or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. All leases that the company enters into as lessee, except for short-term leases (leases of 12
months or less) and leases of low-value assets, are recognised in the statement of financial position.
For leases that are recognised in the statement of financial position, a right-of-use asset and a lease liability are measured
as the present value of the unavoidable future lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, or if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the company's incremental borrowing rate. After the initial recognition of the lease liability, the lease liability is
remeasured to reflect changes to the lease payments and the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability is
recognised as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
The company accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets and the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.
A depreciation charge for the leased asset (included in 'other expenses') and an interest expense on the recognised lease
liability (included in 'finance costs') is recognised. If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the company
by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the company will exercise a purchase
option, the company depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the
underlying asset. Otherwise, the company depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the earlier of
the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.
For short-term leases or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the lease payments associated with those
leases are recognised as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis if that
basis is more representative of the pattern of the company’s benefit.
Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
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Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2018
Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-use is the
present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to the asset or
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent cash flows are grouped together to
form a cash-generating unit.
Finance costs
Finance costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the asset. All other finance costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.
Goods and Services Tax ('GST') and other similar taxes
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the tax authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of
financial position.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority.
New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet
mandatory, have not been early adopted by the consolidated entity for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2018.
The consolidated entity's assessment of the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations,
most relevant to the consolidated entity, are set out below.
AASB 9 Financial Instruments
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard replaces all
previous versions of AASB 9 and completes the project to replace IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement'. AASB 9 introduces new classification and measurement models for financial assets. A financial asset shall
be measured at amortised cost, if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, which arise on specified dates and solely principal and interest. All other financial instrument assets
are to be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the entity makes an irrevocable election on
initial recognition to present gains and losses on equity instruments (that are not held-for-trading) in other comprehensive
income ('OCI'). For financial liabilities, the standard requires the portion of the change in fair value that relates to the
entity's own credit risk to be presented in OCI (unless it would create an accounting mismatch). New simpler hedge
accounting requirements are intended to more closely align the accounting treatment with the risk management activities of
the entity. New impairment requirements will use an 'expected credit loss' ('ECL') model to recognise an allowance.
Impairment will be measured under a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition in which case the lifetime ECL method is adopted. The standard introduces additional
new disclosures. The consolidated entity will adopt this standard from 1 July 2018. The reported results and position of the
consolidated entity will not change on adoption of this standard as it does not result in any changes to the consolidated
entity's existing accounting policies. Adoption will, however, result in changes to information currently disclosed in the
financial statements.
Note 2. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in
relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates
and assumptions on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events,
management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will
seldom equal the related actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the next
financial year are discussed below.
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Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2018
Note 2. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)
Estimation of useful lives of assets
The consolidated entity determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its
property, plant and equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold
will be written off or written down.
Goodwill impairment
The consolidated entity tests annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate impairment,
whether goodwill has suffered any impairment. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of assumptions, including estimated discount rates
based on the current cost of capital and growth rates of the estimated future cash flows. The company undertook an
assessment of the recoverable amount of goodwill at 30 June 2018, and as a result of this assessment, the Directors have
determined to fully impair the goodwill amount of $16,016,577. The reasons for impairment of goodwill are principally due
to the cancellation of the Covermore contract in the 2018 financial year and decrease in sales volume in the Global SIM
business.
Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets
The consolidated entity assesses impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and other indefinite life intangible
assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the consolidated entity and to the particular asset that
may lead to impairment. If an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. This involves
fair value less costs of disposal or value-in-use calculations, which incorporate a number of key estimates and
assumptions.
Recovery of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the consolidated entity considers it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
Note 3. Operating segments
Identification of reportable operating segments
Operating segments are identified based on separate financial information which is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Directors, representing the consolidated entity's Chief Operating Decision Makers (CODM), in assessing performance and
determining the allocation of resources.
The consolidated entity operates in primarily one geographical segment, namely Australia. The primary business segment
is telecommunications namely voice, data and value added services. As the consolidated entity operates in only one
segment, the consolidated results are also its segment results.
The consolidated entity operates in one geographical segment being Australia. Revenue from overseas customers is not
material to the consolidated entity.
Major customers
All revenue of the consolidated entity is from external customers. During the year ended 30 June 2018 approximately 31%
(2017: 51%) of the consolidated entity's external sales revenue was derived from sales to a single customer.
Accounting policy for operating segments
Operating segments are presented using the 'management approach', where the information presented is on the same
basis as the internal reports provided to the Chief Operating Decision Makers ('CODM'). The CODM is responsible for the
allocation of resources to operating segments and assessing their performance.
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Note 4. Revenue
2018
$
Sales revenue
Sale of goods
Services

59,104
2,558,630
2,617,734

336,022
4,806,478
5,142,500

42,376
8,275
50,651

59,473
1,019,502
14,571
1,093,546

2,668,385

6,236,046

Other revenue
Interest
R&D incentive grant
Other revenue
Revenue

2017
$

Accounting policy for revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the consolidated entity and the revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Sale of goods (telecommunications hardware)
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when control of the products has transferred to the customer. This will
usually occur on delivery of the goods. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of sales returns and trade discounts.
Rendering of services
The consolidated entity generates revenues from after-sales service and maintenance provided as well as construction
contracts for telecommunication solutions. Consideration received for those services is initially deferred, included in other
liabilities and is recognised as revenue in the period when the service is performed. In recognising after-sales service and
maintenance revenues, the consolidated entity considers the nature of the service and the customer's use of the related
products, based on historical experience.
Contracts for telecommunication solutions
Construction contracts for telecommunication systems specify a fixed price for the development and installation of IT and
telecommunication systems. When the outcome can be assessed reliably, contract revenue and associated costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of consideration received or receivable in relation to that activity. When the consolidated entity cannot
measure the outcome of a contract reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs that have been
incurred and are recoverable. Contract costs are recognised in the period in which they are incurred. In either situation,
when it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
Interest
Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest
rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
Other revenue
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.
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Note 5. Other income
2018
$

2017
$

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net gain on disposal of investments

-

9,854
2,879

Other income

-

12,733

Note 6. Expenses
2018
$

2017
$

Loss before income tax includes the following specific expenses:
Aggregate employee benefits expense
Defined contribution superannuation expense
Other employee benefits expenses

121,976
1,624,235

130,536
1,745,285

1,746,211

1,875,821

(347,482)

(504,920)

1,398,729

1,370,901

Depreciation
Plant and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Computer equipment
Right-of-use assets - property leases

7,569
1,639
10,583
184,939

3,500
1,880
10,705
155,488

Total depreciation

204,730

171,573

Amortisation
Web development
Software

303,792
466,248

199,989
369,893

Total amortisation

770,040

569,882

Finance costs
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on other borrowings

18,592
33,177

14,312
91,738

Finance costs expensed

51,769

106,050

Less
Employee costs capitalised to web development
Employee benefits expense

27

United Networks Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2018
Note 7. Income tax expense/(benefit)
2018
$

2017
$

Income tax expense/(benefit)
Current tax
Deferred tax - origination and reversal of temporary differences

418,942

(1,235)
(58,687)

Aggregate income tax expense/(benefit)

418,942

(59,922)

762,620
(343,678)

(213,468)
154,781

418,942

(58,687)

(18,849,667)

(1,097,099)

(5,183,658)

(301,702)

4,404,558
-

241,780

Deferred tax included in income tax expense/(benefit) comprises:
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets (note 14)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities (note 19)
Deferred tax - origination and reversal of temporary differences
Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense/(benefit) and tax at the statutory rate
Loss before income tax (expense)/benefit
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 27.5%
Tax effect amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Impairment of goodwill
Non-deductible expenses
Current year tax losses not recognised
Current year temporary differences not recognised
Prior year deferred tax balances derecognised
Income tax expense/(benefit)

(779,100)
861,935
(82,835)
418,942

(59,922)
-

418,942

(59,922)

2018
$

2017
$

Deferred tax assets not recognised
Deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets
have been recognised are attributable to the following:
Unused tax losses
Impairment of receivables
Employee benefits
Accrued expenses
Formation expenses
Deductible temporary differences offset against taxable temporary differences

1,529,093
3,623
43,986
43,842
176,912
(584,472)

-

Total deferred tax assets not recognised

1,212,984

-

The above potential tax benefit for tax losses and deductible temporary differences has not been recognised in the
statement of financial position as the recovery of this benefit is uncertain. The tax losses can only be utilised in the future if
the continuity of ownership test is passed, or failing that, the same business test is passed.
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Note 8. Current assets - cash and cash equivalents
2018
$
Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Cash on deposit

2017
$

455
780,252
575,185

99
158,236
4,056,614

1,355,892

4,214,949

Accounting policy for cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Note 9. Current assets - trade and other receivables
2018
$
Trade receivables
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables
Other receivables
Loan to related party
Commissions receivable
Security deposit
GST receivable

2017
$

325,197
(13,174)
312,023

858,868
(34,237)
824,631

9,174
39,331
12,370

634,698
1,905
396,141
39,331
-

372,898

1,896,706

Impairment of receivables
The ageing of the impaired receivables provided for above are as follows:
2018
$
Past due 60+ days

13,174

2017
$
34,237

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:
2018
$
Opening balance
Additional provisions recognised
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable
Closing balance

2017
$

34,237
55,328
(76,391)

20,912
13,325
-

13,174

34,237

Past due but not impaired
Customers with balances past due but without provision for impairment of receivables amount to $204,915 as at 30 June
2018 ($156,152 as at 30 June 2017).
The consolidated entity did not consider a credit risk on the aggregate balances after reviewing the credit terms of
customers based on recent collection practices.
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Note 9. Current assets - trade and other receivables (continued)
The ageing of the past due but not impaired receivables are as follows:
2018
$
Past due 1-30 days
Past due 61+ days

2017
$

146,803
58,112

2,784
153,368

204,915

156,152

Accounting policy for trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any provision for impairment. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.
Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectable are written
off by reducing the carrying amount directly. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is raised when there is
objective evidence that the consolidated entity will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments (more than 60 days overdue) are considered indicators that the
trade receivable may be impaired. The amount of the impairment allowance is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Cash flows
relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.
Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any provision for impairment.
Note 10. Current assets - inventories
2018
$
Stock on hand - at cost

90,900

2017
$
131,975

Accounting policy for inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a 'first in first out' basis. Cost comprises of purchase
and delivery costs, net of rebates and discounts received or receivable.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Note 11. Current assets - other
2018
$
Prepayments

103,700

30

2017
$
59,322
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Note 12. Non-current assets - property, plant and equipment
2018
$
Plant and equipment - at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Furniture, fixtures and fittings - at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Computer equipment - at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Right-of-use assets - property leases
Less: Accumulated depreciation

2017
$

56,999
(25,807)
31,192

54,630
(18,238)
36,392

45,746
(7,893)
37,853

45,746
(6,254)
39,492

77,107
(61,143)
15,964

69,091
(50,560)
18,531

739,094
(462,717)
276,377

689,410
(277,778)
411,632

361,386

506,047

Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out
below:

Plant and
equipment
$

Furniture,
fixtures and
fittings
$

Computer
equipment
$

Right-of-use
assets property
leases
$

Office
equipment
$

Total
$

Balance at 1 July 2016
Additions
Disposals
Right-of-use asset
derecognised
Transfers in/(out)
Depreciation expense

34,870
4,221
(516)

41,372
-

31,862
1,245
(3,871)

1,317
-

616,606
140,387
-

726,027
145,853
(4,387)

1,317
(3,500)

(1,880)

(10,705)

(1,317)
-

(189,873)
(155,488)

(189,873)
(171,573)

Balance at 30 June 2017
Additions
Depreciation expense

36,392
2,369
(7,569)

39,492
(1,639)

18,531
8,016
(10,583)

-

411,632
49,684
(184,939)

506,047
60,069
(204,730)

Balance at 30 June 2018

31,192

37,853

15,964

-

276,377

361,386

Accounting policy for property, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Depreciation is calculated on a reducing balance basis to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment over their expected useful lives as follows:
Plant and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Computer equipment
Office equipment
Right-of-use assets - property leases

20% - 50%
10% - 50%
50%
25%
Lease term
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Note 12. Non-current assets - property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the company by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the
right-of-use asset reflects that the company will exercise a purchase option, the company depreciates the right-of-use
asset from the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the company
depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use
asset or the end of the lease term.
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit to the
consolidated entity. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profit or loss.
Note 13. Non-current assets - intangibles
2018
$
Goodwill - at cost
Less: Impairment

16,016,577
(16,016,577)
-

Patents, trademarks and other rights - at cost

6,413

2017
$
16,016,577
16,016,577
6,413

Web development - at cost
Less: Accumulated amortisation

1,388,617
(602,002)
786,615

1,074,445
(298,210)
776,235

Software - at cost
Less: Accumulated amortisation

2,518,492
(1,329,565)
1,188,927

1,940,165
(863,317)
1,076,848

1,981,955

17,876,073

Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out
below:
Patents,
trademarks
and other
rights
$

Goodwill
$
Balance at 1 July 2016
Additions
Amortisation expense
Balance at 30 June 2017
Additions
Impairment of assets
Amortisation expense
Balance at 30 June 2018

Web
development
costs
$

Software
$

Total
$

16,016,577
-

6,413
-

691,842
284,382
(199,989)

784,893
661,848
(369,893)

17,499,725
946,230
(569,882)

16,016,577
(16,016,577)
-

6,413
-

776,235
314,172
(303,792)

1,076,848
578,327
(466,248)

17,876,073
892,499
(16,016,577)
(770,040)

6,413

786,615

1,188,927

1,981,955

-
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Note 13. Non-current assets - intangibles (continued)
The company undertook an assessment of the recoverable amount of goodwill at 30 June 2018, and as a result of this
assessment, the Directors have determined to fully impair the goodwill amount of $16,016,577. The reasons for impairment
of goodwill are principally due to the cancellation of the Covermore contract in the 2018 financial year and decrease in
sales volume in the Global SIM business.
Accounting policy for intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination, other than goodwill, are initially measured at their fair value
at the date of the acquisition. Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost. Indefinite life intangible
assets are not amortised and are subsequently measured at cost less any impairment. Finite life intangible assets are
subsequently measured at cost less amortisation and any impairment. The gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
arising from the derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the intangible asset. The method and useful lives of finite life intangible assets are reviewed annually.
Changes in the expected pattern of consumption or useful life are accounted for prospectively by changing the amortisation
method or period.
Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of a business. Goodwill is not amortised. Instead, goodwill is tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are taken to profit or loss and are not
subsequently reversed.
Research and development
Research costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Development costs are capitalised when it is
probable that the project will be a success considering its commercial and technical feasibility; the consolidated entity is
able to use or sell the asset; the consolidated entity has sufficient resources; and intent to complete the development and
its costs can be measured reliably. Capitalised development costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
their expected benefit, being their finite life of 4 years.
Software and web development costs
Significant costs associated with software and web development costs are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of their expected benefit, being their finite life of 4 years.
Note 14. Non-current assets - deferred tax
2018
$

2017
$

Deferred tax asset comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Tax losses
Employee benefits
Accrued expenses
Other
Formation expenses
Provision for doubtful debt

-

397,713
52,423
35,809
1,892
265,368
9,415

Deferred tax asset

-

762,620

Movements:
Opening balance
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss (note 7)

762,620
(762,620)

Closing balance

-
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Note 15. Current liabilities - trade and other payables
2018
$
Trade payables
Interest payable
GST payable
Other payables

2017
$

486,954
2,295
127,235

755,672
21,050
363,493
433,288

616,484

1,573,503

Refer to note 23 for further information on financial instruments.
Accounting policy for trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the consolidated entity prior to the end of the
financial year and which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at amortised cost and are not
discounted. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
Note 16. Current liabilities - borrowings
2018
$
Promissory note - related party
Lease liability

2017
$

315,454
190,250

811,679
180,544

505,704

992,223

Refer to note 23 for further information on financial instruments.
Promissory note - related party
The company issued a promissory note to ULG Holdings Limited, a director related entity, amounting to $1,016,650 in
relation to amounts payable by the wholly owned subsidiary, United Global SIM Limited. The promissory note is secured
under a General Security Agreement and interest is charged at the average bid rate for bills plus a margin of 3%.
Note 17. Current liabilities - provisions
2018
$
Annual leave
Long service leave

2017
$

119,331
28,484

114,786
14,265

147,815

129,051

Accounting policy for employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and long service leave expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled.
Note 18. Non-current liabilities - borrowings
2018
$
Lease liability

87,188
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2017
$
231,088
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Note 18. Non-current liabilities - borrowings (continued)
Refer to note 23 for further information on financial instruments.
Total secured liabilities
The total secured liabilities (current and non-current) are as follows:
2018
$
Lease liability
Promissory note

2017
$

277,438
315,454

411,632
811,679

592,892

1,223,311

Accounting policy for borrowings
Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs. They
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Where there is an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, the
loans or borrowings are classified as non-current.
Note 19. Non-current liabilities - deferred tax
2018
$

2017
$

Deferred tax liability comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Property, plant and equipment
Other
Deductible temporary differences offset against taxable temporary differences

274,856
309,616
(584,472)

Deferred tax liability

-

Movements:
Opening balance
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss (note 7)

343,678
(343,678)

Closing balance

-

126,331
217,347
343,678

188,897
154,781
343,678

Note 20. Equity - issued capital

Ordinary shares - fully paid
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2018
Shares

2017
Shares

125,824,949

125,824,949

2018
$
24,278,800

2017
$
24,278,800
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Note 20. Equity - issued capital (continued)
Movements in ordinary share capital
Details

Date

Shares

Balance
Issue of shares - Initial Public Offering
Share issue costs

1 July 2016
12 January 2017

Balance

30 June 2017

125,824,949

24,278,800

Balance

30 June 2018

125,824,949

24,278,800

90,157,449
35,667,500
-

Issue price
$0.200
$0.000

$
17,777,025
7,133,500
(631,725)

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on the winding up of the company in
proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The fully paid ordinary shares have no par value and the
company does not have a limited amount of authorised capital.
On a show of hands every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each
share shall have one vote.
Initial Public Offering
On 12 January 2017, the company was admitted to the official list of the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX). The
settlement of the issue or transfer of shares as part of the company’s initial public offering on 12 January 2017 resulted in
the issue of 35,667,500 ordinary shares at the offer price of 20 cents per ordinary share. Transaction costs of $631,725
were recognised directly in equity which represents the portion of transaction costs attributable to the issuance of new
shares. Transaction costs of $444,703 attributable to the listing were recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the financial year ended 30 June 2017.
Capital risk management
The consolidated entity's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimum capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.
Capital is regarded as total equity, as recognised in the statement of financial position, plus net debt. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the consolidated entity may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
The consolidated entity would look to raise capital when an opportunity to invest in a business or company was seen as
value adding relative to the current company's share price at the time of the investment. The consolidated entity is not
actively pursuing additional investments in the short term as it continues to integrate and grow its existing businesses in
order to maximise synergies.
The capital risk management policy remains unchanged from the 2017 Annual Report.
The consolidated entity monitors capital on the basis of its working capital position (i.e. liquidity risk). The net working
capital of the consolidated entity at 30 June 2018 was $653,387 (2017: $3,608,175).
Accounting policy for issued capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.
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Note 21. Equity - accumulated losses
2018
$

2017
$

Accumulated losses at the beginning of the financial year
Loss after income tax (expense)/benefit for the year

(2,100,651)
(19,268,609)

(1,063,474)
(1,037,177)

Accumulated losses at the end of the financial year

(21,369,260)

(2,100,651)

Note 22. Equity - dividends
Dividends
There were no dividends paid, recommended or declared during the current or previous financial year.
Franking credits
2018
$
Franking credits available for subsequent financial years based on a tax rate of 27.5%

22,925

2017
$
22,925

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account as at the end of the financial year, adjusted for:
●
franking credits that will arise from the payment of the amount of the provision for income tax at the reporting date
●
franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the reporting date
●
franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the reporting date
Note 23. Financial instruments
Financial risk management objectives
The consolidated entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, price
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The consolidated entity's overall risk management program focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of
the consolidated entity. The consolidated entity does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative
financial instruments, for speculative purposes.
Risk management is carried out under policies set by the board of directors. The board provides principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas.
Market risk
Foreign currency risk
The consolidated entity undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currency and is exposed to foreign
currency risk through foreign exchange rate fluctuations. Most of the consolidated entity's transactions are denominated in
Australian Dollars.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised financial assets and financial liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency. These exposures are not significant.
Price risk
The consolidated entity is not exposed to any significant price risk.
Interest rate risk
The consolidated entity's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the consolidated entity to interest rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the consolidated entity to fair
value interest rate risk.

37

United Networks Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2018
Note 23. Financial instruments (continued)
As at the reporting date, the consolidated entity had the following variable rate borrowings outstanding:
2018
Weighted
average
interest rate
Balance
%
$
Promissory note

4.87%

Net exposure to cash flow interest rate risk

2017
Weighted
average
interest rate
Balance
%
$

315,454

4.72%

315,454

811,679
811,679

An analysis by remaining contractual maturities in shown in 'liquidity and interest rate risk management' below.
An official increase/decrease in interest rates of 100 (2017: 100) basis points would have an adverse/favourable effect on
profit before tax of $3,155 (2017: $8,117) per annum. The percentage change is based on the expected volatility of interest
rates using market data and analysts forecasts.
Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
consolidated entity. The consolidated entity has a strict code of credit, including obtaining agency credit information,
confirming references and setting appropriate credit limits. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the
statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements. The consolidated entity does not hold any collateral.
The consolidated entity has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single counterparty or group of
counterparties. The class of assets described as 'Trade and other receivables' is considered to be the main source of credit
risk for the consolidated entity. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries
and geographical areas.
Liquidity risk
Vigilant liquidity risk management requires the consolidated entity to maintain sufficient liquid assets (mainly cash and cash
equivalents) and available borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as and when they become due and payable.
The consolidated entity manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and available borrowing facilities by
continuously monitoring actual and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
Remaining contractual maturities
The following tables detail the consolidated entity's remaining contractual maturity for its financial instrument liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the financial liabilities are required to be paid.

- 2018

Not later than
3 months to 1
1 month
1 - 3 months
year
$
$
$

1 to 5 years
$

Remaining
contractual
maturities
$

Non-interest bearing
Trade and other payables

616,484

-

-

-

616,484

Interest-bearing
Promissory note
Lease liability
Total non-derivatives

15,442
631,926

30,747
30,747

315,454
144,061
459,515

87,188
87,188

315,454
277,438
1,209,376
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Note 23. Financial instruments (continued)

- 2017

Not later than
3 months to 1
1 month
1 - 3 months
year
$
$
$

1 to 5 years
$

Remaining
contractual
maturities
$

Non-interest bearing
Trade and other payables

1,573,503

-

-

-

1,573,503

Interest-bearing
Promissory note
Lease liability
Total non-derivatives

13,737
1,587,240

27,336
27,336

811,679
139,471
951,150

231,088
231,088

811,679
411,632
2,796,814

The cash flows in the maturity analysis above are not expected to occur significantly earlier than contractually disclosed
above.
Fair value of financial instruments
Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value.
Note 24. Key management personnel disclosures
Compensation
The aggregate compensation made to directors and other members of key management personnel of the consolidated
entity is set out below:
2018
$
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Long-term benefits

2017
$

762,117
66,482
14,574

758,014
56,951
(2,524)

843,173

812,441

Note 25. Remuneration of auditors
During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by Rothsay Chartered Accountants,
the auditor of the company:
2018
$

2017
$

Audit services - Rothsay Chartered Accountants
Audit or review of the financial statements

61,000

71,000

Other services - Rothsay Chartered Accountants
Taxation services
IPO due diligence
Other advisory services

35,142
5,500

35,080
43,830
-

40,642

78,910

101,642

149,910
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Note 26. Related party transactions
Legal Parent entity
United Networks Limited is the parent entity.
Accounting parent entity
United Lifestyle Group Networks Pty Ltd is the accounting parent of the group.
Subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 28.
Key management personnel
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 24 and the remuneration report included in the
directors' report.
Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:
2018
$
Sale of goods and services:
Sale of goods to other related party
Sale of services to other related party
Payment for goods and services:
Payment for services from other related party
Payment for other expenses:
Interest paid to other related party

2017
$

84,242
51,489

259,624
185,992

372,617

445,130

23,021

-

Receivable from and payable to related parties
The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties:
2018
$

2017
$

Current receivables:
Trade receivables from other related party

58,622

94,167

Current payables:
Trade payables to other related party

10,279

6,622

Loans to/from related parties
The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to loans with related parties:
2018
$
Current receivables:
Loan to director related entity
Current borrowings:
Promissory note - director related entity
Terms and conditions
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.
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2017
$

39,331

41,236

315,454

811,679
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Note 27. Parent entity information
Set out below is the supplementary information about the parent entity.
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Parent
2018
$

2017
$

Profit/(loss) after income tax

(8,676,223)

12,494

Total comprehensive income

(8,676,223)

12,494

Statement of financial position
Parent
2018
$

2017
$

Total current assets

500,017

9,135,491

Total assets

500,311

9,898,470

Total current liabilities

(1,332)

376,925

Total liabilities

(1,332)

720,603

9,163,750
(8,662,107)

9,163,750
14,117

501,643

9,177,867

Equity
Issued capital
Retained profits/(accumulated losses)
Total equity

Guarantees entered into by the parent entity in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries
The parent entity had no guarantees in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017.
Contingent liabilities
The parent entity had no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017.
Capital commitments - Property, plant and equipment
The parent entity had no capital commitments for property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017.
Legal parent entity disclosures
The above information has been extracted from the books and records of the legal parent entity, United Networks Limited.
Accordingly, the information does not relate to the 'accounting parent' - United Lifestyle Group Networks Pty Ltd.
Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies of the parent entity are consistent with those of the consolidated entity, as disclosed in note 1,
except for the following:
●
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost, less any impairment, in the parent entity.
●
Dividends received from subsidiaries are recognised as other income by the parent entity and its receipt may be an
indicator of an impairment of the investment.
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Note 28. Interests in subsidiaries
United Networks Ltd is the legal parent entity of the group and United Lifestyle Group Networks Pty Ltd is the accounting
parent entity.
Legal subsidiaries:
Name of entity

Principal place of business /
Country of incorporation

Ownership interest
2018
2017
%
%

United Lifestyle Group Networks Pty Ltd
United Networks Ltd
United Sim Canada Limited
United Networks Operations Limited
United Global Sim Limited*

Australia
Hong Kong
Canada
Hong Kong
Hong Kong

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

*

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Subsidiary of United Lifestyle Group Networks Pty Ltd

Note 29. Events after the reporting period
No matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2018 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the
consolidated entity's operations, the results of those operations, or the consolidated entity's state of affairs in future
financial years.
Note 30. Reconciliation of loss after income tax to net cash used in operating activities
2018
$
Loss after income tax (expense)/benefit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment of goodwill
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Transaction costs attributable to the listing
Other
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets
Increase in prepayments
Decrease in other operating assets
Decrease in trade and other payables
Decrease in provision for income tax
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities
Increase in employee benefits
Increase in other operating liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities
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2017
$

(19,268,609)

(1,037,177)

974,770
16,016,577
-

741,455
(12,733)
444,703
6,405

1,521,903
41,075
762,620
(44,378)
(957,019)
(343,678)
18,764
-

(476,122)
(74,525)
(213,468)
(14,900)
264,594
(121,618)
(22,924)
154,781
12,206
43,801

(1,277,975)

(305,522)
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Note 31. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Loan related party
$
Balance at 1 July 2016
Net cash used in financing activities
Right of use assets - property leases
Other changes

787,331
(787,331)
-

Promissory
note
$

Lease
liability
$

Total
$

1,016,650
(204,971)
-

616,605
(77,851)
140,387
(267,509)

2,420,586
(1,070,153)
140,387
(267,509)

Balance at 30 June 2017
Net cash used in financing activities
Right of use assets - property leases

-

811,679
(496,225)
-

411,632
(183,878)
49,684

1,223,311
(680,103)
49,684

Balance at 30 June 2018

-

315,454

277,438

592,892

Note 32. Earnings per share
2018
$
Loss after income tax attributable to the owners of United Networks Limited

(19,268,609)

2017
$
(1,037,177)

Number

Number

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic earnings per share

125,824,949

106,769,709

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted earnings per share

125,824,949

106,769,709

Cents

Cents

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

(15.31)
(15.31)

(0.97)
(0.97)

Accounting policy for earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of United Networks Limited,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the financial year.
Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account
the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the
weighted average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential
ordinary shares.
Note 33. Share-based payments
Employee Share Option Plan
On 17 November 2015 the company established a employee share option plan to provide eligible employees with a means
of receiving options to subscribe for shares and a means of receiving rights to receive shares. Eligible employees includes:
(a) an employee, director or secretary of the company or any subsidiary of the company;
(b) and a contractor, consultant, agent, advisor other person retained, engaged or nominated by company or any
subsidiary of the company.
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The purpose of the plan is to provide eligible employees with an opportunity to share in the growth in value of the company
and to encourage them to improve the longer-term performance of the company and its return to shareholders.
Participation in the plan is at the Board of Director’s discretion and no individual has a contractual right to participate in the
plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits.The Board has the discretion to determine the exercise price of the options and
any exercise conditions. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, no payment is required for the grant of options or
rights under the plan. Options granted under the plan carry no dividend or voting rights.
On 1 July 2016, a total of 14,000,000 options were granted to the company's Directors. The options vest on 1 July 2018,
are exercisable at 30 cents and expire on 11 November 2021. There are no performance conditions attaching to these
options. The fair value of the options granted was $nil.
Other share-based payments
On 2 November 2016, the Board granted 1,000,000 options at an exercise price of 30 cents per option to the Lead
Manager in relation to the company's initial public offer of shares (IPO). The options were granted as more than $5 million
was raised in the IPO. The options vest on 2 November 2019 and expire on 2 November 2021. The fair value of the
options granted was $nil.
On 11 November 2016, the Board granted 1,000,000 options at an exercise price of 30 cents per option to the Corporate
Adviser in consideration for consultancy services in relation to the company's initial public offer of shares (IPO). The
options were granted as more than $5 million was raised in the IPO. The options vest on 11 November 2018 and expire 11
November 2021.The fair value of the options granted was $nil.
There were no options or rights issued under the plan during the 2018 financial year.
Set out below are summaries of options granted:
2018
Grant date

Expiry date

01/07/2016
02/11/2016
11/11/2016

11/11/2021
02/11/2021
11/11/2021

Exercise
price
$0.300
$0.300
$0.300

Weighted average exercise price

Balance at
the start of
the year

Granted

Expired/
forfeited/
other

Exercised

Balance at
the end of
the year

14,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
16,000,000

-

-

-

14,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
16,000,000

$0.300

$0.000

$0.000

$0.000

$0.300

2017
Grant date

Expiry date

01/07/2016
02/11/2016
11/11/2016

11/11/2021
02/11/2021
11/11/2021

Weighted average exercise price

Exercise
price
$0.300
$0.300
$0.300

Balance at
the start of
the year

Granted

Expired/
forfeited/
other

Exercised

Balance at
the end of
the year

-

14,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
16,000,000

-

-

14,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
16,000,000

$0.000

$0.300

$0.000

$0.000

$0.300

The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at the end of the financial year was 3.37 years
(2017: 4.37 years).
Options were priced using a Black-Scholes pricing model. Expected volatility was based on an evaluation of the historical
volatility of other comparable companies based on publicly available information. Options were assumed to be exercised in
full on the date of expiry.
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The total share based payments expense for the year was $nil (2017: $nil).
Accounting policy for share-based payments
Equity-settled and cash-settled share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees.
Equity-settled transactions are awards of shares, or options over shares, that are provided to employees in exchange for
the rendering of services. Cash-settled transactions are awards of cash for the exchange of services, where the amount of
cash is determined by reference to the share price.
The cost of equity-settled transactions are measured at fair value on grant date. Fair value is independently determined
using either the Binomial or Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impact of dilution, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option, together with non-vesting conditions that do
not determine whether the consolidated entity receives the services that entitle the employees to receive payment. No
account is taken of any other vesting conditions.
The cost of equity-settled transactions are recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity over the
vesting period. The cumulative charge to profit or loss is calculated based on the grant date fair value of the award, the
best estimate of the number of awards that are likely to vest and the expired portion of the vesting period. The amount
recognised in profit or loss for the period is the cumulative amount calculated at each reporting date less amounts already
recognised in previous periods.
The cost of cash-settled transactions is initially, and at each reporting date until vested, determined by applying either the
Binomial or Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into consideration the terms and conditions on which the award was
granted. The cumulative charge to profit or loss until settlement of the liability is calculated as follows:
●
during the vesting period, the liability at each reporting date is the fair value of the award at that date multiplied by the
expired portion of the vesting period.
●
from the end of the vesting period until settlement of the award, the liability is the full fair value of the liability at the
reporting date.
All changes in the liability are recognised in profit or loss. The ultimate cost of cash-settled transactions is the cash paid to
settle the liability.
Market conditions are taken into consideration in determining fair value. Therefore any awards subject to market conditions
are considered to vest irrespective of whether or not that market condition has been met, provided all other conditions are
satisfied.
If equity-settled awards are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the modification has not been made.
An additional expense is recognised, over the remaining vesting period, for any modification that increases the total fair
value of the share-based compensation benefit as at the date of modification.
If the non-vesting condition is within the control of the consolidated entity or employee, the failure to satisfy the condition is
treated as a cancellation. If the condition is not within the control of the consolidated entity or employee and is not satisfied
during the vesting period, any remaining expense for the award is recognised over the remaining vesting period, unless the
award is forfeited.
If equity-settled awards are cancelled, it is treated as if it has vested on the date of cancellation, and any remaining
expense is recognised immediately. If a new replacement award is substituted for the cancelled award, the cancelled and
new award is treated as if they were a modification.
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In the directors' opinion:
●

the attached financial statements and notes comply with the Corporations Act 2001, the Accounting Standards, the
Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements;

●

the attached financial statements and notes comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board as described in note 1 to the financial statements;

●

the attached financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as
at 30 June 2018 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

●

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable.

The directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to section 295(5)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001.
On behalf of the directors

___________________________
Nicholas Ghattas
Chief Executive Officer and Director
26 September 2018
Sydney
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UNITED NETWORKS LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of United Networks Limited
Opinion
We have audited the financial report of United Networks Limited (“United”) and its controlled entities (the
“Group”), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors' declaration.
In our opinion the financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(a)

giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2018 and of its performance
for the year ended on that date; and

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described as in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and
Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) that are relevant
to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
Material Uncertainty Related to Going concern
For the year ended 30 June 2018 the Group incurred a loss after income tax of $19,268,609 (2017:
$1,037,177) and net cash outflows from operating activities of $1,277,975 (2017: $305,522). The net
operating loss after tax for the financial year ended 30 June 2018, excluding the impairment of goodwill of
$16,016,577 and the write back of the net deferred tax asset of $418,942, was $2,833,090. The recurring
operating historical losses and net cash outflows from operating activities give rise to uncertainty that may
cast doubt about the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern.
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The company has recently announced a new key partner contract and reduced overheads to align with the
current business revenue and the new contract announced. Overhead reductions in excess of $1.2 million
were implemented in the last two quarters of the 2018 financial year, with further reductions implemented
to wages and rent costs in July 2018 and August 2018 resulting in a total overhead reduction of over $1.5
million.
The increase in the operating loss before impairment of goodwill and write back of the net deferred tax
asset, was significantly due to the cancellation of the Covermore contract in the 2018 financial year. Despite
the impairment, the global sim product continues to generate revenues and the business has launched new
global partners who have launched the Wi-Fi and Insuretech solutions.
Refer to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements for the Directors' mitigation of going concern
uncertainty.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial report of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
Key Audit Matter
Impairment of Goodwill
The Group had $16,016,577 of
goodwill which is required to be
tested annually for impairment.
As disclosed in Note 2 of the
financial report, during the
current financial year, a key
customer of the group
terminated an agreement which
could significantly impact the
Group.
An impairment assessment
made by management over the
Group’s goodwill balance is a
key audit matter as it
incorporates significant
judgments in respect of factors
such as forecast cash flows,
growth rates and discount rates
as well as economic
assumptions such as inflation.

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter
Our procedures included:
 Assessing management’s determination of the Group’s CGUs based on
our understanding of the group. We also compared this to the
internal reporting of the group to assess how revenue is reported.
 Evaluating management’s cash flow forecast along with the
assumptions and methodologies used. We also took into consideration
the results of the current year actual results to the prior forecasts to
assess management’s ability to accurately forecast results.
 Evaluating the assessment performed by the Group’s expert to ensure
the methodology appeared reasonable and the assumptions noted in
management’s forecasts were accurately reflected.
 Reviewing the discounting applied to determine if it was reasonable
in the current market and reflective of the rate of interest the Group
would be able to obtain finance if required.
 Verifying the calculations for mathematical accuracy and considered
the sensitivity of the calculation by varying the assumptions and
applying other values within a reasonable range.
 Reviewing the disclosures in the financial report to ensure they
complied with Australian Accounting Standards.
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Responsibility of Directors for the Financial Report
The directors of the Group are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken based on the financial
report.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:


Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.



Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial report of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on the Remuneration Report
We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 6 to 11 of the Directors’ Report for the year
ended 30 June 2018. The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of
the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards.
Opinion on the Remuneration Report
In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of United Networks Limited, for the year ended 30 June 2018,
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Rothsay Chartered Accountants

Frank Vrachas
Partner
Sydney, 26 September 2018
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The shareholder information set out below was applicable as at 31 August 2018.
Distribution of equitable securities
Analysis of number of equitable security holders by size of holding:
Number
of holders
of ordinary
shares
1 to 1,000
1,001 to 5,000
5,001 to 10,000
10,001 to 100,000
100,001 and over

12
22
91
187
79
391

Holding less than a marketable parcel

183

Equity security holders
Twenty largest quoted equity security holders
The names of the twenty largest security holders of quoted equity securities are listed below:
Ordinary shares
% of total
shares
Number held
issued
Autopilot Consulting Pty Ltd
Temont Pty Ltd
Farjoy Pty Ltd
CVC Limited
Leda Holdings Pty Ltd
Bond Street Custodians Limited < Lam1 - D08017 A/C >
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited
Mr Humberto Vieira
Richard Albarran < Albarran Family No 2 A/C >
Rolay Pty Ltd
Tuwele Pty Limited < Rosella Superannuation A/C >
Mr Gareth Graeme Macdougall
Tuwele Pty Ltd < Murphy Family A/C >
Slapdash Pty Ltd
Eric Golf Pty Ltd < Russell J E Wright S/F A/C >
Tempo (Aust) Pty Ltd
International Pacific Securities Limited
Acron Holdings Pty Limited < Acron Super Fund >
Rosart Investments Pty Ltd < Arthur Martin Super Fund A/C >
Hills Mgmt Pty Ltd < Hills A/C>

38,208,124
38,208,124
6,300,000
2,800,525
2,500,000
2,500,000
2,439,891
1,666,667
1,333,334
1,333,334
1,250,000
1,000,000
784,000
700,000
697,418
666,667
583,333
500,000
450,000
450,000

30.37
30.37
5.01
2.23
1.99
1.99
1.94
1.32
1.06
1.06
0.99
0.79
0.62
0.56
0.55
0.53
0.46
0.40
0.36
0.36

104,371,417

82.96

Unquoted equity securities
Number
on issue
Options over ordinary shares issued

16,000,000
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Number
of holders
5

United Networks Limited
Shareholder information
30 June 2018
Substantial holders
Substantial holders in the company are set out below:
Ordinary shares
% of total
shares
Number held
issued
Autopilot Consulting Pty Ltd
Temont Pty Ltd
Farjoy Pty Ltd

38,208,124
38,208,124
6,300,000

30.37
30.37
5.01

Voting rights
The voting rights attached to ordinary shares are set out below:
Ordinary shares
On a show of hands every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each
share shall have one vote.
There are no other classes of equity securities.
Restricted securities
Class

Expiry date

Number
of shares

Ordinary

4 January 2019

76,705,781

52

